
Minutes 
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting 

February 24, 2014 
 

Approved as Amended 3/10/2014 1 

6:30 PM Chair Rafter opened the meeting and asked all those present to stand for the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
Members Present: Hal Rafter, Mark Carpenter and Mary Bonser 
Others: Charles A. Brown – Town Administrator, Dawn Wirkkala – Secretary, Gail Powell, Don 
Cinfo 
MANIFEST SIGNATURE:  
Motion: by Mr. Carpenter, second by Ms. Bonser to approve the February 24, 2014 manifest. 
Vote: 3 – 0 in favor. 
OUTSTANDING MINUTES: Chair Rafter postponed the approval of minutes. 
Town Administrator Reports, Signature Items:  
Recreation Department: Mr. Brown stated Ms. Horvath asked to postpone her meeting with the 
Selectmen to another meeting.  Ms. Bonser suggested waiting to have discussion regarding the 10-
year Recreation plan until after Town Elections and new Selectmen was elected. Mr. Brown stated 
Ms. Horvath planned to ask other individuals and parties who work with Recreation and have a 
vested interest in the process to attend as well.  
Ms. Horvath hired Caroline Davis as the new Recreation Assistant.  Recreation is busy with the 
February School Vacation Camp. 
Fire Department: Mr. Brown stated the Fire Chief indicated he will meet with the engineer soon.  
Chair Rafter asked if the engineer has received all the requested information.  Mr. Brown stated it is 
his understanding that the engineer has received all the needed information and will be meeting with 
the Fire Chief. 
Highway Department: Mr. Brown stated the highway staff is working hard; one staff member was 
injured and will be out for a week to recover.  Mr. Carpenter stated there have been posts on the 
public Nottingham Facebook page thanking the road crew for their hard work.  Ms. Bonser stated 
the New Hope Church sponsored a dinner for the highway crews thanking them as well. 
Town Office: Mr. Brown requested the selectmen sign an updated letter to the LGC listing the 
individuals able to contact the LGC for answers to questions.  General discussion took place about 
legislative actions completed by the LGC and the types of notification distributed to municipalities 
about their actions. 
Motion: by Mr. Carpenter, second by Ms. Bonser to approve the list of authorized users of the 
LGC.   
Vote: 3 – 0 in favor. 
Mr. Brown stated he received the Fairpoint bill for the replacement of a broken pole, with an 
approximate expense to the Town of $6,000.00; almost two times the cost of the previous pole 
replacement.  The bill indicates 28 hours of labor, which would mean one and a half days for two 
people, which would mean one and a half days to complete the process. 
Mr. Brown stated he has received 13 resumes for the Bookkeeper posting.  Interviews can start 
taking place at anytime.   
Mail/Correspondence/Sign Items:  Chair Rafter stated the Selectmen have been requested to sign 
a new Petition and Pole License for five telephone pole replacements on Priest Road. 
Motion: by Mr. Carpenter, second by Ms. Bonser approve the Petition and Pole License #458 for 
pole replacement on Priest Road. 



Minutes 
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting 

February 24, 2014 
 

Approved as Amended 3/10/2014 2 

Vote: 3 – 0 in favor. 
Board of Selectmen Department/Board/Committee Reports: 
Recycle Center: Mr. Carpenter stated he had a conversation with Mr. Cinfo who has indicated there 
have been some positive changes taking place at the center and staff is waiting for direction on the 
other recommendations.  A volunteer will be taking up the coordination of overseeing the Swap 
Shop, however in the meantime, there has been a lot of recent activity with self policing and it is in 
good shape. 
Mr. Carpenter and Ms. Bonser stated the felt the fee hearing went well with a lot of positive 
responses. 
Town Report: Ms. Powell asked about the dedication of the Town Report and a possible 
reconsideration by the Selectmen to recommend the two water groups, who were active with the 
USA Springs issue.  Ms. Powell asked about the criteria to determine the dedication. 
Mr. Brown stated that the Selectmen recommended dedicating the Town Report to two individuals, 
and he recommended against a dedication to either Nottingham Water Alliance or the Save Our 
Groundwater groups.   
Ms. Bonser stated the Town Report is complete and has already been submitted to the printer.  It 
was stated the Town Report is typically dedicated to specific individuals; a private group has never 
been considered.  It is typically a person who has recently passed away or contributed and 
participated in a lot of municipal activities.   
Mr. Carpenter stated the groups should not consider not receiving the dedication as a slight.  Mr. 
Brown stated there should be caution about the USA Springs issue because of the continuing 
lawsuit. 
Chair Rafter stated he made the recommendation and believes there could be a dedication to the 
groups.  Past history shouldn’t decide who, or what group might receive the dedication.  The two 
water groups have put in a lot of work, with a large impact, which should be recognized. 
APPOINTMENTS:  
7:00 pm: Janet Horvath/10 Year Recreation Plan: The discussion was postponed to a later date.   
General Business: 
Recycle Center Task Completion Timeline – The Selectmen reviewed the list of tasks needing 
completion with Mr. Cinfo to determine the priority of each task and a potential completion date.   
Mr. Cinfo stated he doesn’t believe changing the traffic pattern will work, because the Swap Shop 
isn’t being eliminated and now the Electronic dumpster will not move.   
Chair Rafter stated the Swap Shop could move and discussion took place about a possible location 
for the Swap Shop and Electronic Dumpster.  Ms. Bonser asked about moving the Swap Shop back 
to the original location.  Mr. Cinfo stated people tend to park willy nilly, all over the place, and it 
would make emptying paper into the paper dumpster more difficult.  Mr. Cinfo suggested taking 
down some trees near the original location of the Swap Shop, but it wouldn’t be able to take place 
until this spring. 
There was agreement about postponing items related to driving pattern and parking to a later date, 
testing different methods.  Mr. Cinfo stated it isn’t a good idea.  Mr. Carpenter stated the committee 
recommended consideration of changing the traffic pattern and further study might be needed. 
It was stated for both items one and two; traffic driving pattern and parking could be considered for 
the future. 



Minutes 
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting 

February 24, 2014 
 

Approved as Amended 3/10/2014 3 

Chair Rafter stated he believed everyone is supportive of item three for new signage and 
instructional boards.  Mr. Carpenter stated he is volunteering to create the sign for the trash 
compactor, especially after his day of working at the center.  The Recycle Center Sub-committee 
also had suggestions for additional signage that should be completed.  Mr. Carpenter requested 
distribution of the samples of measuring progress be distributed for consideration.  The Selectmen 
agreed signage would be a first priority. 
Discussion took place about community service and volunteers at the center.  Mr. Carpenter stated 
the Selectmen will ask the sub-committee members who would be available to participate going 
forward. 
Discussion took place on item four, eliminating unnecessary sorting of recyclables; such as 
eliminating the sorting of newspaper from mixed paper.  Mr. Cinfo stated it is possible, but he 
doesn’t agree with eliminating the separation of different types of paper because people ask for 
newspaper in the winter to start their fires with and it will mean emptying the paper bins more times 
per day.  Mr. Cinfo stated the staff started mixing the paper together in the dumpster because of the 
reduced amount of newspaper being received.  Mixing the paper types does not lower the amount 
received and is an acceptable process according to the NRRA.  Chair Rafter stated separation will 
be a decision made by Mr. Cinfo and it could be changed during the summer.  Mr. Cinfo was 
concerned if a change was made during the summer people would get confused. 
Chair Rafter asked about larger bags for the sorting of plastics.  Mr. Cinfo stated he does not agree 
with the recommended larger bags to be used for storing plastics and the staff doesn’t believe they 
will work either. 
Ms. Wirkkala stated she was offended by Mr. Cinfo’s continued reference to her as the person who 
made the recommendations.  Final recommendations to the Selectmen were made by the committee 
as a group, and were made after receiving support from Mr. Cinfo and members of the Recycling 
Center staff, who took part in committee discussions.  Ms. Wirkkala stated despite his current 
disagreement, Mr. Cinfo did agree to a different traffic pattern and elimination or reduction of 
parking, the moving of the Electronic Dumpster, finding alternatives for easy plastic recycling, and 
eliminating unnecessary sorting of paper.   
Mr. Cinfo stated he agreed to try the suggestions but now he has had time to rethink the suggestions 
and doesn’t believe they will work.  Ms. Wirkkala asked why Mr. Cinfo agreed to the 
recommendations after three months of discussion, only to change his mind after bringing the 
recommendations to the Selectmen.   
Ms. Wirkkala stated despite all the good ideas that are now coming forward, she feels the 
committee wasted a lot of time coming up with agreed upon recommendations, only to now have 
them rejected. 
Mr. Carpenter stated he supported the work of the committee; focus should be placed on the 
positive, stating there is now an ongoing and open dialogue with additional people to find solutions.  
Ms. Bonser stated she understands the frustration, change can be difficult, but there should be a 
consideration about the center from a customer standpoint.   
Mr. Cinfo stated he does not like the suggested bag for storing plastics and Ms. Wirkkala requested 
for Mr. Cinfo to find an alternative. 
Discussion took place about plastic processing, including alternatives to hanging the currently used 
bags to provide more than one user to access the bag at one time.  Mr. Brown stated one of the 
biggest drawbacks to the current bags is the folding over at the top.  Mr. Carpenter stated it is a 



Minutes 
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting 

February 24, 2014 
 

Approved as Amended 3/10/2014 4 

valid statement to find an alternative method; the current bags are used more than once.  Mr. Cinfo 
stated the bags used for #2 plastics aren’t used as much because the detergents degrade the plastics, 
but staff tries to salvage those they can.   
Chair Rafter indicated a rack to hold the bags should be considered and if the paper is combined, it 
would open up another wall where additional bags for plastics could be placed.  Mr. Cinfo stated he 
would consider a rack. 
Ms. Bonser asked how the changes to the second baler were working and would it be possible for 
him to create some type of simple holder for the bag.  Mr. Cinfo stated the dogs on the baler are 
working very well.  Mr. Brown stated he believed it could be done, by the welder or Mr. Cinfo.  
Discussion took place about the pulley system and it was stated it would only be needed if bigger 
bags were used for plastics. 
Discussion took place about safety issues for center staff, with narrow stairs and methods used for 
putting materials in the loft areas.  Mr. Cinfo stated the new trailers will open the back room for 
storing of additional baled plastics.  Discussion took place about finding alternatives to bringing up 
the bags of plastics up to the loft areas, including making the stairs wider.  Mr. Cinfo stated he did 
not believe the stairs could be wider and the Selectmen asked what other method could be used to 
make the process safer.  Ms. Wirkkala stated the pulley system was suggested based on finding 
some type of alternative to storing plastics, any type of bag could be used, providing more safety for 
staff as well.  Mr. Cinfo stated some type of rope pulley system could be used, Ms. Bonser 
suggested a system similar to a manual clothes line. 
Discussion took place about enforcement of the center policy and rules.  New signage would help 
with the process; the new stickers will allow the staff to avoid confrontation by taking down a 
license plate number.  Ms. Wirkkala stated based on statements made during the fee hearing there 
appears to be some resistance by staff to enforce the rules and policies.   
Mr. Cinfo stated there isn’t resistance, but on Saturday’s they can’t be at the windows to watch 
everything.  Mr. Bullock can watch the outside more if the Swap Shop is eliminated.  Ms. Bonser 
stated staff can only do what they can do, but there should be an attempt.  Mr. Brown stated the 
license plate number can be taken down for the habitual offenders and the Town Office can send a 
letter.   
Mr. Cinfo stated there haven’t been rules and procedures for people to follow, and having signs 
people can see and something the center staff can refer back to will help.  This includes having staff 
observe who the offenders are, reporting the information back to the office, and having office 
administration respond in writing to those continuing to not follow the rules.  Mr. Cinfo stated he 
has told center staff members there are some in town who shouldn’t be spoken to, in order to avoid 
confrontation, and staff can just clean up their mistakes; turning over names means the Town Office 
can take care of the problems. 
Mr. Carpenter stated there should be a reasonable level of enforcement, notifying people when 
mistakes are made and Mr. Cinfo should pull center staff together and review methods of 
addressing those mistakes when they are made by users. 
Discussion took place about creating a staff manual for how the center processes materials.  Ms. 
Wirkkala stated the committee heard from center staff there was a lack of consistency with 
processes and procedures; writing receipts, squishing plastics or not squishing plastics, sorting/not 
sorting, mix paper, etc.  Mr. Carpenter stated it is Mr. Cinfo’s responsibility to organize the methods 
and train staff to complete the processes consistently and correctly.  Mr. Brown stated there should 



Minutes 
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting 

February 24, 2014 
 

Approved as Amended 3/10/2014 5 

be some type of manual to provide assistance to new employees.  Mr. Cinfo agreed he would work 
on putting the information in writing and will complete it by the end of March 2014.  Ms. Bonser 
suggested having a white board with rules and guidelines.  Mr. Cinfo stated he tries to talk to staff 
all the time. 
Discussion took place about the Swap Shop.  Mr. Carpenter stated Mr. Gene Reed has volunteered 
to organize the volunteers who will help to maintain the Swap Shop, keeping it clean and organized 
and empty of trash. 
It was stated education and training for customers will continue as an ongoing process.  Mr. Cinfo 
stated staff members attend training at least once a year.  Individuals have volunteered to write 
articles. 
Discussion took place about the future recommendations.  Mr. Cinfo stated there isn’t any space 
available for placing composting materials.  Ms. Wirkkala stated there is a new company offering 
municipal composting of all types of materials, using a box similar to what is used for paper.  
Mr. Carpenter asked about satellite recycling. Discussion took place about towns already doing 
something similar, the possibility for a high school student using the idea as her community project, 
and working towards increasing options for recycling. 
Sample Boards and signage, increasing enforcement of policy and rules, and finding alternatives for 
plastic sorting and storing would be considered the first priorities.  Consideration of some type of 
pulley system for putting materials into the loft area and increasing safety measures would be 
second priorities.  Transferring the maintenance duties of the swap shop is already taking place and 
should be considered a top priority. 
Mr. Carpenter stated if the process does nothing more than increase awareness of recycling, it is a 
big step forward.  Increasing recycling will mean a need for more open hours, satellite recycling and 
other options. 
Chair Rafter stated despite the frustration between the committee and center staff, he believes the 
committee did a good job, brought forward a lot of good ideas and recommendations, bringing 
awareness to many of the issues and challenges with the center and recycling. 
Mr. Brown stated work will start on the new roof as soon as possible.   
The Selectmen thanked Mr. Cinfo for attending. 
ADJOURNMENT: Having no further business, 
8:02 PM Motion: by Ms. Bonser, second by Mr. Carpenter to adjourn. 
Vote: 3 – 0 in favor. 
Respectfully Submitted,  

Dawn Wirkkala 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


